
 1

Village of Geneseo        August 25, 2010 
Planning Board        Regular Meeting 
 
Members Present:  Other Village Representatives Present: 
Matthew Griffo, Chair  Dean O’Keefe, Code Enforcement Officer 
Sue Richardson   Scott DeHollander, MRB Group Engineer 
Dori Farthing   David Matthews, Village of Geneseo,  
David Woods     Livingston County Planning Board Representative 
Claren Kruppner 
 
Applicants Present: 
Stephen Vasile, University Hots – 114 Main Street 
 
Public Present: 
Steve Vasile  Jennie Vasile  Barry Caplan  Scott Hicks 
 
1.  Meeting Opened: 
 Chair Griffo opened the meeting at 4:00pm.   
 
2.  Meeting Minutes: 
 The July 28, 2010 meeting minutes were reviewed.  S. Richardson moved to approve the 
minutes as amended.  C. Kruppner seconded the motion and the motion passed with ayes from  
M. Griffo, S. Richardson, D. Woods and C. Kruppner.  D. Farthing abstained, as she was not 
present at the July 28, 2010 meeting.   
 
3.  Code Enforcement Office Report: 
 July 2010  
  Building Permits    4 
  Sign Permits     2 
  Rental Housing   25 
 
 CEO O’Keefe stated that he and Code Enforcement Officer Ron Maxwell have been 
completing rental inspections.  There are a couple of new homes being built in the Village that he 
and CEO Maxwell have also been working on along with the Hampton Inn project which has broke 
ground.  D. Farthing asked about the 25’ forever-wild area along the rear property line of the 
Hampton Inn project.  CEO O’Keefe stated that a pre-construction meeting was held and flags were 
posted where all agreed the forever-wild area should be.   
 CEO O’Keefe asked about the request for change to the fence for the Hampton Inn project.  
Chair Griffo thought it was a construction change, therefore did not need approval by the Planning 
Board, however because the fence is depicted on the site plan it is a matter for the Planning Board.  
The Board agreed to the change, noting that the fence will still be six foot high, but will be placed in 
eight-foot sections and per Code the good side will be facing the neighbors.  It was noted that in 
most instances, there was not a lot of disturbance to the Reservoir Road neighbor’s backyards.  
However, there is considerable disturbance near the Scoville’s backyard on Reservoir Road due to 
the pond.   
 
4.  Town Planning Board Update – David Woods: 
 The August Town Planning Board meetings were cancelled; therefore, there is nothing new 
to report.  The Board mentioned the change in the pond at Pondside Plaza.  CEO O’Keefe noted 
that the change is due to a compromise between Phase II stormwater requirements and what was 
previously done for the Morgan View Estates apartment complex.  The pond is bigger and deeper 



 2

and will have a new bigger culvert pipe installed once the rain holds off.  S. Richardson asked about 
the exposed rock in the pond.  CEO O’Keefe stated that it is shale from the bottom of the pond and 
it is hoped that it will cut down on the amount of weeds around the pond.   
 
5.  Livingston County Planning Board:   
 The Board welcomed David Matthews, the Village’s newly appointed Livingston County 
Planning Board representative.  Mr. Matthews stated that there was no news to report from the 
most recent County Planning Board meeting.   
 
6.  University Hots – 114 Main Street – Stephen Vasile: 
 Stephen Vasile stated that he has operated a University Hots restaurant in Buffalo near 
South Campus on Main Street for the past six years.  This site will be mostly takeout but with 
approximately sixteen seats.  He will be serving, hot dogs, hamburgs and the college plate (or 
garbage plate).  He wishes to attract the college crowd but also the Village crowd therefore, plans to 
open at 11am and stay open late.   

Chair Griffo stated that the concern with being open late is with garbage, noise and security.   
Mr. Vasile stated that he is near the college campus in Buffalo and has had no problems with these 
things and trains his employees to be mindful of issues such as these.  Chair Griffo asked if there 
would be security cameras.  Mr. Vasile stated that he does not have them right now but plans to 
install ones that can be monitored over the Internet.  Chair Griffo asked how late the restaurant 
would be open.  Mr. Vasile stated that Pizza Paul’s and Mama Mia’s are open until 3am so that is 
what he is planning at this time. Mr. Vasile continued by stating that he does not plan to serve 
alcohol now or in the future and will train his employees to clean up in front of the establishment.   
Chair Griffo asked about refuse removal. Mr. Vasile stated that they would have trash receptacles in 
the rear of the building, which they can access through the rear and through the basement of the 
building.  
 D. Woods asked when Mr. Vasile plans to open.  Mr. Vasile stated that he plans to open up 
next Monday or Tuesday.  D. Farthing asked if there would be outside sitting.  Mr. Vasile stated 
that he was not sure if that was allowed, but would like to have approximately one to two tables 
outside.  CEO O’Keefe that a sidewalk permit is required.   
 D. Farthing asked about the “UH” logo on the proposed sign.  Mr. Vasile stated that this is 
his logo, which he uses at the Buffalo location.  She also asked if all the other letters and design 
would be in gold leaf.  Mr. Vasile stated that was correct.  The sign is approximately 10 square feet 
in size and engraved High Density Urethane (HDU).  Chair Griffo stated that the quoted price of 
$1065 is in line with other signs this size, made of HDU with gold leaf lettering.  Mr. Vasile pointed 
out that the outside border of the sign is the same color navy blue as in the inside.  D. Woods asked 
where the sign would be mounted.  Mr. Vasile stated that the sign would be mounted in the middle 
of his storefront and at this time he has no plans to light the sign.  CEO O’Keefe stated that the 
existing Stage Coach sign must come down and be replaced with something smaller if they wish to 
have a sign.  The Board asked if Mr. Vasile plans to put the logo in the window.  Mr. Vasile stated 
that he would like to.   
 At this time, the State Environmental Quality Review Short Assessment form was reviewed.  
D. Woods moved to grant the University Hots sign as proposed a negative declaration.   
C. Kruppner seconded the motion and the motion passed with ayes from all.    

D. Farthing moved to approve the design of the University Hots sign as presented.   
S. Richardson seconded the motion and the motion passed with ayes from all.   

D. Woods moved to recommend to the Village Board that they approve a sign grant for 
University Hots as presented.  C. Kruppner seconded the motion and the motion passed with ayes 
from all.   
 At 4:30pm, Chair Griffo opened the University Hots Special Use Permit Public Hearing.  
Chair Griffo asked for comments from the public.   



 3

 Scott Hicks, Rector Hicks Funeral Home, 111 Main Street stated that he is noticing the actual 
size of the business and the sign that states late night food, and wonders where the garbage will be 
going.  Barry Caplan, Sundance Books and Text Books, 106 Main Street and 2 School Street stated 
that he has the same question.   
 Mr. Vasile explained that the trash receptacles are located in the rear of the building and his 
employees will be trained to clean up after hours.   
 Mr. Hicks stated that as these young people come out of the establishment with food, with 
not a lot of room in the establishment to sit, they will walk out of there and notice the front porches 
right across the street that look like a picnic area.  Mr. Hicks stated that he does not want any more 
garbage to clean up then he already has.   
 Mr. Vasile stated that he will train his employees to monitor the surrounding area and 
across the street not just the front of his business.  Mr. Vasile continued by stating that he has not 
had any complaints of garbage at his Buffalo location.   
 Mr. Hicks continued by stating that the Village Department of Public Works empties the 
public trashcans on Main Street on Friday mornings, and by Saturday night they are full again, 
therefore knows that the garbage will just be on Main Street after the bars close on Saturday 
night/Sunday morning.    

S. Richardson wonders if using less packaging could mitigate this.  Mr. Vasile stated that 
they use very distinct Styrofoam boxes that he will advise his employees to clean up after they close.   
D. Farthing stated that she appreciates that Mr. Vasile uses very distinct Styrofoam boxes, but does 
not want the applicant or his employees to have to clean up other businesses garbage.   
 Barry Caplan stated that he also does not want garbage left on his stoops as he has had 
problems with this in the past.  He also wondered about a dumpster as he does not see one and 
does not believe there is room enough for one.  Mr. Vasile stated that he would be contracting for at 
least two large tote refuse containers that would be emptied at least twice a week.  Chair Griffo 
commented that this is very similar to what Muddy Waters does and recommends that the toes be 
secured so they do not get dumped.   
 The Board agreed that the garbage is a Village wide problem and perhaps the Village should 
take a closer look at when the public trashcans get emptied or should be emptied and that this 
burden should not be put on one business.     
 Chair Griffo asked if there were any other questions or comments.  Hearing none,  
C. Kruppner moved to close the public hearing at 4:45pm.  D. Farthing seconded the motion and 
the motion passed with ayes from all.   

With no further discussion, D. Woods moved to amend the State Environmental Quality 
Review Short Assessment negative declaration to include granting a special use permit.   
C. Kruppner seconded the motion and the motion passed with ayes from all.   

D. Farthing moved to grant a special use permit for a restaurant, University Hots at 114 
Main Street, Tax Map #:  80.16-1-29, commencing today, August 25, 2010 and expiring on 
September 1, 2011.  S. Richardson seconded the motion and the motion passed with ayes from all.   
 
7.  Draft 2010 Geneseo, NY Façade Renovation Guidelines: 

D. Woods reported that the committee reviewing the draft façade guidelines for the Village 
of Geneseo met on Monday, August 23, 2010.  At that meeting, the committee reviewed the draft 
document page by page.  A big part of the draft guidelines regarding signs has not yet been 
reviewed.  D. Woods explained that the document would not conflict with any current Village 
regulations.   
 D. Woods stated that one decision the group has to make is whether or not this is something 
that will solely focus on Livingston County or other counties, as there are additional grant 
programs that may be available as the immediate program does not have a whole lot of money.   
 D. Woods noted that he believes seven out of the nine Village are participating in this 
program and there is another meeting scheduled for next Monday morning.   



 4 

 
8.  KFC/Taco Bell – 4200 Lakeville Road – Exterior Building Remodel: 

Chair Griffo stated that after reviewing the submittal from Design +, Inc. for KFC/Taco Bell, 
he does not see any changes based on the few concerns the Planning Board had last month.  The 
proposed colors of the building have been submitted as requested, but the sign logo proportions 
have not been reduced.   

D. Woods stated that he has reviewed the Access Management Overlay District section of the 
Code regarding this request and he does not believe it applies.    

At this time the Board agreed to set a site plan modification – exterior building remodel 
public hearing for KFC/Taco Bell for Wednesday, September 22, 2010 at 4:30pm.   
 Chair Griffo stated that this property has a Triple Net Lease with Dawn A. Aprile and 
Charles W. Aprile III.  KFC/Taco Bell does not own the property, only the building.  The Board 
agreed that they would like some type of letter from the Aprile’s acknowledging that they are aware 
of the changes KFC/Taco Bell is planning.   
  
9.  Wilson Farms – 137 Main Street: 
 Engineer DeHollander sent TRM Architect a comment letter dated August 17, 2010 
regarding the proposed changes for Sugarcreek to Wilson Farms, but has not yet heard back from 
him.  The project is very minor and none of the comments from the August 17th letter would hold 
them back from starting work.   

CEO O’Keefe noted that he has dropped off a sign permit to Wilson Farms as he noticed that 
the free standing gas prices sign was changed to a new and improved one with stick on plastic 
letters, but without a permit.   

CEO O’Keefe asked the Board if they were aware if there were plans to change the gas 
canopy to say Wilson Farms instead of Mobil like it currently does, as this has been the case with 
two other Sugarcreek to Wilson Farms change overs in the area.  The Board stated that TRM 
Architect Marcus Knoll indicated at the last meeting that there was no plan to change the gas 
canopy.   

 
10.  Corrin Strong  - Hartford House Subdivision Phase II: 

Secretary Mack advised the Board that all outstanding engineering fees owed the Village by 
Mr. Strong have been paid.   

Therefore, D. Woods moved to grant approval for the Hartford House Subdivision Phase II 
four-lot subdivision contingent upon the May 25, 2010 letter from the New York State Office of 
Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation, Historic Preservation Field Services Bureau which 
states that “…the project will have No Adverse Impact upon cultural resources in or eligible for 
inclusion in the State and National Registers of Historic Places with the following conditions:   
1.  The historic iron fence will be maintained and 2.  The landscape surrounding the new homes is 
retained and maintained with sufficient trees, deciduous and evergreen, to filter or block the view 
of the new homes from the road and from the Hampton [Hartford] house.”  C. Kruppner seconded 
the motion and the motion passed with ayes from all.   
 
11.  Livingston Lanes & Pub – 4260 Lakeville Road: 
 Chair Griffo advised the Board that Marty Estruch is planning on painting the bowling alley 
and making minor improvements to the awning, along with applying their logo “Livingston Lanes 
& Pub” to the building once painted.  Chair Griffo stated that he is ready to sign the building permit 
for the changes, but wanted to notify the Board of the changes.  The bottom of the building will be 
white and black and the top will be an earth tone green color.   
 Lots of improvements have taken place or will be taking place inside.  Also, Mr. Estruch 
plans to add a couple of pole lights in the bowling alley parking lot for safety reasons.  Mr. Estruch 
is aware that these lights have to be dark sky compliant.   



 5

 The Board did not have any concerns with Chair Griffo signing the building permit.   
 
12.  Church of Jesus Christ of Latter Day Saints – 42 East South Street: 

D. Woods asked where the Village stands with the outstanding drainage issue at the Church 
of Jesus Christ of Latter Day Saints.  Engineer DeHollander stated that he owes the facilities 
manager of NOYES Hospital a phone call to arrange a meeting to discuss the issue.  Engineer 
DeHollander stated that he would arrange the meeting as soon as possible and keep the Board 
informed.  C. Kruppner wondered if some type of vegetation could help.  Engineer DeHollander 
explained that it would not because of it being a concentrated discharge.   
 
13.  Highland Park Expansion: 
 D. Farthing asked about the Highland Park expansion project and wondered if the site plan 
was available online.  Chair Griffo stated that he was not sure if the plans were available online, but 
stated that Trustee Sandra Brennan apologized profusely for not bringing the plan before the 
Planning Board.   
 Mr. Matthews stated that as a neighbor to the park, the tree removal was extensive and now 
many backyards to Stuyvesant Manor, Highland Road and Rorbach Lane are visible.  As a design 
professional he has suggested a bio-filtration swale for the park in lieu of the originally proposed 
retention pond.  However with no landscaping budget for the swale, Mr. Matthews has suggested 
the Village Board contact the Garden Club, SUNY Geneseo, Geneseo Central, and any other local 
groups to see if they can help with the swale plantings. 
 
14.  Meeting Closed: 

D. Woods moved to close the meeting 5:24pm with second from C. Kruppner.  The motion 
passed with ayes from all.   
 
 
Aprile S. Mack, Secretary 


